

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fifty-second Legislative Assembly

* * * * *

Bismarck, January 28, 1991

The House convened at 1:00 p.m., with Speaker R. Anderson presiding.

The prayer was offered by Father Maurice Mueller, Transfiguration Church, Edgeley.

The roll was called and all members were present except Representatives Grosz and Larson.

A quorum was declared by the Speaker.

HOUSE ENGROSSING REPORT

The following bills and resolutions were engrossed: HB 1025, HB 1031, HB 1035, HB 1043, HB 1046, HB 1049, HB 1057, HB 1065, HB 1077, HB 1088, HB 1089, HB 1091, HB 1095, HB 1104, HB 1106, HB 1112, HB 1114, HB 1117, HB 1126, HB 1127, HB 1130, HB 1133, HB 1140, HB 1142, HB 1154, HB 1158, HB 1184, HB 1192, HB 1197, HB 1199, HB 1208, HB 1209, HB 1213, HB 1217, HB 1229, HB 1230, HB 1231, HB 1233, HB 1242, HB 1294, HCR 3001, and HCR 3010.

HOUSE ENROLLING REPORT

The following resolution was enrolled: HCR 3018

MOTION

REP. KLOUBEC MOVED that the rules be suspended and that the amendments on the Sixth order of business to HB 1051, HB 1086, HB 1145, HB 1245, HB 1345, HB 1411, and HCR 3012 be adopted, which motion prevailed.

HB 1051, HB 1086, HB 1145, HB 1245, HB 1345, HB 1411, and HCR 3012, as amended, were placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

THE HOUSE RECOGNIZED THE PRESENCE OF:

Former Representative Harley Kingsbury

MESSAGE to the HOUSE from the SENATE (Marion Houn, Secretary)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on: SB 2014, SB 2030, SB 2318.

MESSAGE to the HOUSE from the SENATE (Marion Houn, Secretary)

MR. SPEAKER: The President has signed: HCR 3018.

MESSAGE to the SENATE from the HOUSE (Roy Gilbreath, Chief Clerk)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on: HB 1024, HB 1042, HB 1164, HB 1184, HB 1202, HB 1264, HB 1304, HB 1315, HCR 3014.

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS

HB 1050: REP. KRETSCHMAR (Committee on Judiciary) MOVED that the amendments on HJ page 273 be adopted and then be placed on the Eleventh order with DO PASS.

REQUEST

REP. RING REQUESTED that the question of the adoption of the amendments to HB 1050 be divided to have the sections voted on separately in the following manner:

DIVISION A

Page 2, line 2, remove "not controlled"

Page 2, line 3, remove "or managed by the contributing organization"

DIVISION B

Page 2, remove lines 14 and 15

Page 2, line 16, replace "(8)" with "(7)"

Page 2, line 20, replace "(9)" with "(8)"

DIVISION C

Page 5, line 13, after the period insert "In addition, the licensing authority may adopt rules to limit or restrict eligible use disbursements to ensure that funds are best utilized for educational, charitable, fraternal, religious, patriotic, or other public-spirited purposes."

Renumber accordingly

RULING BY THE SPEAKER

SPEAKER R. ANDERSON RULED that House Rule 319 states that the Division of the Question must be supported by twelve or more Representatives, and that eleven or more Representatives joined in the request of Representative Ring to divide the amendments to HB 1050, therefore, the request was granted.

The question being on the motion to adopt Division A of the proposed amendments to HB 1050.

Division A of the proposed amendments to HB 1050 was adopted on a voice vote.

The question then was on the motion to adopt Division B of the proposed amendments to HB 1050.

Division B of the proposed amendments to HB 1050 failed on a voice vote.

The question then was on the motion to adopt Division C of the proposed amendments to HB 1050.

Division C of the proposed amendments to HB 1050 passed on a voice vote.

The question then was on the adoption of the proposed amendments to HB 1050, including Divisions A and C and excluding Division B with the title amended appropriately, and lines, sections and pages renumbered accordingly.

The proposed amendments to HB 1050, including Divisions A and C and excluding Division B, were adopted on a voice vote.

MOTION

REP. KLOUBEC MOVED that the rules be suspended and that HB 1050 be deemed properly engrossed and be placed on the Eleventh order, as amended, for second reading and final passage, which motion prevailed.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1050: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 7 of section 53-06.1-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition of eligible uses of net proceeds from charitable gaming.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 73 YEAS, 31 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Anderson, B.; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Brokaw; Byerly; Carlson; Cleary; Coats; DeMers; DeWitz; Dorso; Erickson; Flaagan; Freier; Gabrielson; Gates; Gerntholz; Gilmore; Goffe; Gorman; Grumbo; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar; Hokana; Howard; Huether; Jacobson; Jensen; Kaldor; Kloubec; Kolbo; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Mahoney; Miller; Muhs; Mutzenberger; Nelson; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; Payne; Peterson;

Porter; Price; Pyle; Rennerfeldt; Ring; Ritter; Rydell; Scherber; Schimke; Schmidt; Schneider; Skjerven; Snyder; Soukup; St. Aubyn; Starke; Stofferahn; Svedjan; Thorpe; Timm; Tollefson; Trautman; Wentz; Whalen; Williams; Speaker R. Anderson

NAYS: Bateman; Belter; Bernstein; Bodine; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Carlisle; Clayburgh; Dalrymple; Delzer; Enget; Gorder; Kelsch; Kerzman; Linderman; Martin; Martinson; Meyer; Myrdal; Nichols; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Schindler; Shide; Skar; Thompson; Urlacher; Wald; Wardner; Wilkie

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Grosz; Larson

HB 1050 passed and the title was agreed to.

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS

HB 1053: REP. KRETSCHMAR (Committee on Judiciary) MOVED that the amendments on HJ page 274 be adopted and then be placed on the Eleventh order with DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

MOTION

REP. KLOUBEC MOVED that the rules be suspended and that HB 1053 be deemed properly engrossed and placed on the calendar, as amended, for second reading and final passage, which motion prevailed.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1053: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 53-06.1-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the playing of twenty-one and pooling of tips received by twenty-one dealers.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 93 YEAS, 10 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Anderson, B.; Bateman; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Bernstein; Bodine; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Clayburgh; Cleary; Coats; Dalrymple; DeMers; DeWitz; Dorso; Enget; Erickson; Flaagan; Freier; Gabrielson; Gates; Gerntholz; Gilmore; Gorman; Grumbo; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar; Hokana; Howard; Huether; Jacobson; Jensen; Kaldor; Kelsch; Kloubec; Kolbo; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Linderman; Mahoney; Martinson; Meyer; Miller; Mutzenberger; Myrdal; Nelson; Nicholas; Nichols; Nowatzki; Oban; Olsen, D.; Payne; Peterson; Price; Pyle; Rennerfeldt; Ring; Ritter; Rydell; Scherber; Schimke; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Skar; Skjerven; Snyder; Soukup; St. Aubyn; Starke; Stofferahn; Svedjan; Thorpe; Timm; Tollefson; Trautman; Wald; Wardner; Wentz; Whalen; Wilkie; Williams; Speaker R. Anderson

NAYS: Brokaw; Delzer; Goffe; Gorder; Kerzman; Martin; Muhs; Olson, A.; Thompson; Urlacher

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Grosz; Larson; Porter

HB 1053 passed and the title was agreed to.

THE HOUSE RECOGNIZED THE PRESENCE OF:

Former Representative Dan Gerhardt

MOTIONS

REP. TOLLEFSON MOVED that the House reconsider its action whereby HB 1344 failed to pass, which motion lost on a verification vote.

REP. WALD MOVED that the House reconsider its action whereby HB 1272 failed to pass, which motion prevailed on a verification vote.

REP. DALRYMPLE MOVED that HB 1272 be laid over one legislative day, which motion lost.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1272: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 13 of chapter 404 of the 1987 Session Laws of North Dakota, relating to the repeal of North Dakota Century Code sections 9-10-07 and 32-03-07 concerning comparative negligence and exemplary damages; and to repeal section 15 of chapter 404 of the 1987 Session Laws of North Dakota, relating to the expiration date of legislation concerning tort liability.

MOTION

REP. CLAYBURGH MOVED the previous question, which motion prevailed.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 58 YEAS, 46 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Bateman; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Bernstein; Boehm; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Clayburgh; Dalrymple; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Enget; Freier; Gates; Gerntholz; Gordier; Gorman; Hausauer; Henegar; Howard; Jensen; Kelsch; Kloubec; Kunkel; Martin; Martinson; Meyer; Miller; Muhs; Myrdal; Nicholas; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Payne; Porter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Rydell; Schimke; Schindler; Schmidt; Shide; Skjervén; Soukup; St. Aubyn; Svedjan; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Trautman; Urlacher; Wald; Wardner; Whalen; Speaker R. Anderson

NAYS: Aarsvold; Anderson, B.; Bodine; Boucher; Brokaw; Carlson; Cleary; Coats; DeMers; Erickson; Flaagan; Gabrielson; Gilmore; Goffe; Grumbo; Hanson; Hokana; Huether; Jacobson; Kaldor; Kerzman; Kolbo; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Laughlin; Linderman; Mahoney; Mutzenberger; Nelson; Nichols; Nowatzki; Oban; Peterson; Pyle; Ring; Ritter; Scherber; Schneider; Skar; Snyder; Starke; Stofferahn; Thorpe; Wentz; Wilkie; Williams

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Grosz; Larson

HB 1272 passed and the title was agreed to.

FIRST READING OF HOUSE RESOLUTION

Reps. Belter, Dalrymple introduced:

HR 1: A resolution congratulating Mr. Joe Nelson upon his election as chairman of the American Farm Bureau Federation Young Farmer and Rancher Committee.

Was read the first time.

MOTION

REP. KLOUBEC MOVED that the rules be suspended, that HR 1 not be printed, not be referred to committee, be read in its entirety, not be printed in the Journal, and placed on the calendar for second reading and final passage, which motion prevailed.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE RESOLUTION

HR 1: A resolution congratulating Mr. Joe Nelson upon his election as chairman of the American Farm Bureau Federation Young Farmer and Rancher Committee.

The question being on the final adoption of the resolution, which has been read.

HR 1 was declared adopted on a voice vote.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

HB 1091: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 5 of section 37-19.1-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition of veteran for veterans' preference purposes.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 94 YEAS, 9 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Anderson, B.; Bateman; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Bernstein; Bodine; Boehm; Boucher; Brokaw; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Clayburgh; Cleary; Coats; Dalrymple; Delzer; DeMers; DeWitz; Dorso; Erickson; Flaagan; Freier; Gates; Gerntholz; Gilmore; Goffe; Gorder; Gorman; Grumbo; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar; Hokana; Howard; Huether; Jacobson; Jensen; Kaldor; Kelsch; Kloube; Kolbo; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Linderman; Mahoney; Martin; Martinson; Meyer; Miller; Mutzenberger; Myrdal; Nelson; Nicholas; Nichols; Nowatzki; Oban; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Payne; Peterson; Porter; Price; Pyle; Rennerfeldt; Ring; Ritter; Rydell; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Skjerven; Snyder; Soukup; St. Aubyn; Starke; Stofferahn; Svedjan; Thorpe; Timm; Tollefson; Trautman; Urlacher; Wald; Wardner; Wentz; Whalen; Williams

NAYS: Enget; Gabrielson; Kerzman; Muhs; Scherber; Schimke; Skar; Wilkie; Speaker R. Anderson

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Grosz; Larson; Thompson

HB 1091 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1106: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 37-18-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the duties of the commissioner of veterans' affairs.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 103 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Anderson, B.; Bateman; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Bernstein; Bodine; Boehm; Boucher; Brokaw; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Clayburgh; Cleary; Coats; Dalrymple; Delzer; DeMers; DeWitz; Dorso; Enget; Erickson; Flaagan; Freier; Gabrielson; Gates; Gerntholz; Gilmore; Goffe; Gorder; Gorman; Grumbo; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar; Hokana; Howard; Huether; Jacobson; Jensen; Kaldor; Kelsch; Kerzman; Kloube; Kolbo; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Linderman; Mahoney; Martin; Martinson; Meyer; Miller; Muhs; Mutzenberger; Myrdal; Nelson; Nicholas; Nichols; Nowatzki; Oban; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Payne; Peterson; Porter; Price; Pyle; Rennerfeldt; Ring; Ritter; Rydell; Scherber; Schimke; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Skar; Skjerven; Snyder; Soukup; St. Aubyn; Starke; Stofferahn; Svedjan; Thorpe; Timm; Tollefson; Trautman; Urlacher; Wald; Wardner; Wentz; Whalen; Wilkie; Williams; Speaker R. Anderson

NAYS: Thompson

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Grosz; Larson

HB 1106 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1133: A BILL for an Act to prohibit the inhalation of vapors of certain volatile chemicals; to provide a penalty; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 104 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Anderson, B.; Bateman; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Bernstein; Bodine; Boehm; Boucher; Brokaw; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Clayburgh; Cleary; Coats; Dalrymple; Delzer; DeMers; DeWitz; Dorso; Enget; Erickson; Flaagan; Freier; Gabrielson; Gates; Gerntholz; Gilmore; Goffe; Gorder; Gorman; Grumbo; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar; Hokana; Howard; Huether; Jacobson; Jensen; Kaldor; Kelsch; Kerzman; Kloubec; Kolbo; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Linderman; Mahoney; Martin; Martinson; Meyer; Miller; Muhs; Mutzenberger; Myrdal; Nelson; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Payne; Peterson; Porter; Price; Pyle; Rennerfeldt; Ring; Ritter; Rydell; Scherber; Schimke; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Skar; Skjervén; Snyder; Soukup; St. Aubyn; Starke; Stofferahn; Svedjan; Thompson; Thorpe; Timm; Tollefson; Trautman; Urlacher; Wald; Wardner; Wentz; Whalen; Wilkie; Williams; Speaker R. Anderson

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Grosz; Larson

HB 1133 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause was declared carried.

HB 1140: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 54-17-07.3 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the creation of a home improvement finance program.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 95 YEAS, 9 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Anderson, B.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Bernstein; Bodine; Boucher; Brokaw; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Clayburgh; Cleary; Coats; Dalrymple; Delzer; DeMers; DeWitz; Dorso; Enget; Erickson; Flaagan; Freier; Gabrielson; Gates; Gerntholz; Gilmore; Goffe; Gorman; Grumbo; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar; Hokana; Howard; Huether; Jacobson; Jensen; Kaldor; Kelsch; Kerzman; Kloubec; Kolbo; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Linderman; Mahoney; Martin; Martinson; Meyer; Miller; Muhs; Mutzenberger; Myrdal; Nelson; Nicholas; Nichols; Nowatzki; Oban; Payne; Peterson; Porter; Price; Pyle; Rennerfeldt; Ring; Ritter; Rydell; Scherber; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Skar; Skjervén; Snyder; Soukup; St. Aubyn; Starke; Stofferahn; Svedjan; Thompson; Thorpe; Tollefson; Trautman; Urlacher; Wardner; Wentz; Whalen; Wilkie; Williams; Speaker R. Anderson

NAYS: Bateman; Boehm; Brown; Gorder; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Schimke; Timm; Wald

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Grosz; Larson

HB 1140 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1142: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 37-19.1-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to hearing procedures for veteran's preference grievance hearings.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 103 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Anderson, B.; Bateman; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Bernstein; Bodine; Boehm; Boucher; Brokaw; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Clayburgh; Cleary; Coats; Dalrymple; Delzer; DeMers; DeWitz; Dorso; Enget; Erickson; Flaagan; Freier; Gabrielson; Gates; Gerntholz; Gilmore; Goffe; Gorder; Gorman; Grumbo; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar; Hokana; Howard; Huether; Jacobson; Jensen; Kaldor; Kelsch; Kerzman; Kloubecc; Kolbo; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Linderman; Mahoney; Martin; Martinson; Meyer; Miller; Muhs; Mutzenberger; Nelson; Nicholas; Nichols; Nowatzki; Oban; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Payne; Peterson; Porter; Price; Pyle; Rennerfeldt; Ring; Ritter; Rydell; Scherber; Schimke; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Skar; Skjerven; Snyder; Soukup; St. Aubyn; Starke; Stofferahn; Svedjan; Thompson; Thorpe; Timm; Tollefson; Trautman; Urlacher; Wald; Wardner; Wentz; Whalen; Wilkie; Williams; Speaker R. Anderson

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Grosz; Larson; Myrdal

HB 1142 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1192: A BILL for an Act to create and enact chapter 26.1-34.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to creating an exemption that may be granted by the commissioner of insurance for the issuance of charitable gift annuities.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 102 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Anderson, B.; Bateman; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Bernstein; Bodine; Boehm; Boucher; Brokaw; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Clayburgh; Cleary; Coats; Dalrymple; Delzer; DeMers; DeWitz; Dorso; Enget; Erickson; Flaagan; Freier; Gabrielson; Gates; Gerntholz; Gilmore; Goffe; Gorder; Gorman; Grumbo; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar; Hokana; Howard; Huether; Jacobson; Jensen; Kaldor; Kelsch; Kerzman; Kloubecc; Kolbo; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Linderman; Mahoney; Martin; Martinson; Meyer; Miller; Muhs; Mutzenberger; Myrdal; Nelson; Nicholas; Nichols; Nowatzki; Oban; Olsen, D.; Payne; Peterson; Porter; Price; Pyle; Rennerfeldt; Ring; Ritter; Rydell; Scherber; Schimke; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Skar; Skjerven; Snyder; Soukup; St. Aubyn; Starke; Stofferahn; Svedjan; Thompson; Thorpe; Timm; Tollefson; Trautman; Urlacher; Wald; Wardner; Wentz; Whalen; Wilkie; Williams

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Grosz; Larson; Olson, A.; Speaker R. Anderson

HB 1192 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1294: A BILL for an Act to create and enact sections 26.1-34-01.1 and 26.1-36-02.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to a "free-look" provision for annuity and accident and health policies and certificates.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 103 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Anderson, B.; Bateman; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Bernstein; Bodine; Boehm; Boucher; Brokaw; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Clayburgh; Cleary; Coats; Dalrymple; Delzer; DeMers; DeWitz; Dorso; Enget; Erickson; Flaagan; Freier; Gabrielson; Gates; Gerntholz; Gilmore; Goffe; Gorder; Gorman; Grumbo; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar; Hokana; Howard; Huether; Jacobson; Jensen; Kaldor; Kelsch; Kerzman; Kloubec; Kolbo; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Linderman; Mahoney; Martin; Martinson; Meyer; Miller; Muhs; Mutzenberger; Myrdal; Nelson; Nicholas; Nichols; Nowatzki; Oban; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Payne; Peterson; Porter; Price; Pyle; Rennerfeldt; Ring; Ritter; Rydell; Scherber; Schimke; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Skar; Skjerven; Snyder; Soukup; St. Aubyn; Starke; Stofferahn; Svedjan; Thompson; Thorpe; Timm; Tollefson; Trautman; Urlacher; Wald; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Williams; Speaker R. Anderson

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Grosz; Larson; Whalen

HB 1294 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTIONS

REP. KLOUBEC MOVED that the House reconsider its action whereby the committee reports were accepted and HB 1010 and HB 1247 were placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar, which motion prevailed.

REP. KLOUBEC MOVED that HB 1010 and HB 1247 be rereferred to the Committee on Appropriations, which motion prevailed. Pursuant to Rep. Kloubec's motion, HB 1010 and HB 1247 were rereferred.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

HB 1355: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 15-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to rate of tuition.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS, the roll was called and there were 13 YEAS, 88 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Berg, R.; Bernstein; Carlson; Clayburgh; Gorman; Howard; Jensen; Kretschmar; Ring; Rydell; Timm; Tollefson; Whalen

NAYS: Aarsvold; Anderson, B.; Bateman; Belter; Berg, G.; Bodine; Boehm; Boucher; Brokaw; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Cleary; Coats; Dalrymple; Delzer; DeMers; DeWitz; Dorso; Enget; Erickson; Flaagan; Freier; Gabrielson; Gates; Gerntholz; Gilmore; Goffe; Gorder; Grumbo; Hanson; Henegar; Hokana; Huether; Jacobson; Kaldor; Kelsch; Kerzman; Kloubec; Kolbo; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Linderman; Mahoney; Martin; Martinson; Meyer; Miller; Muhs; Mutzenberger; Myrdal; Nelson; Nicholas; Nichols; Nowatzki; Oban; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Payne; Peterson; Porter; Price; Pyle; Rennerfeldt; Ritter; Scherber; Schimke; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Skar; Skjerven; Snyder; Soukup; St. Aubyn; Starke; Stofferahn; Svedjan; Thorpe; Trautman; Urlacher; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Williams; Speaker R. Anderson

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Grosz; Hausauer; Larson; Thompson; Wald

HB 1355 was declared lost.

HB 1358: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 53-06.1-07 and sections 53-06.1-07.1 and 53-06.1-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to sports wagering as an allowed game of chance.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS, the roll was called and there were 1 YEAS, 96 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 9 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Kretschmar

NAYS: Aarsvold; Anderson, B.; Bateman; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Bernstein; Bodine; Boehm; Boucher; Brokaw; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Clayburgh; Cleary; Coats; Dalrymple; Delzer; DeMers; DeWitz; Dorso; Enget; Erickson; Flaagan; Freier; Gabrielson; Gates; Gertholz; Gilmore; Goffe; Gorder; Gorman; Grumbo; Hanson; Henegar; Hokana; Howard; Huether; Jacobson; Jensen; Kaldor; Kerzman; Kloubec; Kolbo; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Linderman; Mahoney; Martin; Martinson; Meyer; Miller; Muhs; Mutzenberger; Myrdal; Nelson; Nicholas; Nichols; Nowatzki; Oban; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Payne; Peterson; Porter; Price; Pyle; Rennerfeldt; Ring; Ritter; Rydell; Scherber; Schimke; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Skar; Skjerven; Soukup; St. Aubyn; Starke; Stofferahn; Svedjan; Thorpe; Timm; Trautman; Urlacher; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Williams; Speaker R. Anderson

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Grosz; Hausauer; Kelsch; Larson; Snyder; Thompson; Tollefson; Wald; Whalen

HB 135B was declared lost.

HB 1366: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 44-08-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to dimensions of the seal of a court or officer.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 100 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 6 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Anderson, B.; Bateman; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Bernstein; Bodine; Boehm; Boucher; Brokaw; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Clayburgh; Cleary; Coats; Dalrymple; Delzer; DeMers; DeWitz; Dorso; Enget; Erickson; Flaagan; Freier; Gabrielson; Gates; Gertholz; Gilmore; Goffe; Gorder; Gorman; Grumbo; Hanson; Henegar; Hokana; Howard; Huether; Jacobson; Jensen; Kaldor; Kelsch; Kerzman; Kloubec; Kolbo; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Linderman; Mahoney; Martin; Martinson; Meyer; Miller; Muhs; Mutzenberger; Myrdal; Nelson; Nicholas; Nichols; Nowatzki; Oban; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Payne; Peterson; Porter; Price; Pyle; Rennerfeldt; Ring; Ritter; Rydell; Scherber; Schimke; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Skar; Skjerven; Snyder; Soukup; St. Aubyn; Starke; Svedjan; Thorpe; Timm; Tollefson; Trautman; Urlacher; Wardner; Wentz; Whalen; Wilkie; Williams; Speaker R. Anderson

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Grosz; Hausauer; Larson; Stofferahn; Thompson; Wald

HB 1366 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTION

REP. KLOUBEC MOVED that the House waive the reading of the title to HB 1369, which motion prevailed.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1369: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-52 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to participation by members of the legislative assembly in the public employees retirement system; to amend and reenact sections 15-39.1-10.3, 15-39.1-24,

18-11-15.1, 39-03.1-08.1, 39-03.1-14.1, 40-45-10.1, 40-46-09.2, 54-52-01, 54-52-05, 54-52-06, 54-52-17, 54-52-17.2, 54-52-17.3, and 54-52.1-03.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to retirement plan provisions under the public employees retirement system, the purchase of legislative service credit under the teachers' fund for retirement, alternate firemen's relief association plan, the highway patrolmen's retirement system, city police pension plan, and the public employees retirement system, and to participation by members of the legislative assembly in the retiree health benefits fund.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS, the roll was called and there were 17 YEAS, 83 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 6 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Berg, G.; Clayburgh; DeMers; Dorso; Enget; Gabrielson; Gates; Gorman; Jensen; Kaldor; Kerzman; Kretschmar; Meyer; Ring; Scherber; Wentz

NAYS: Anderson, B.; Bateman; Belter; Berg, R.; Bernstein; Bodine; Boehm; Boucher; Brokaw; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Cleary; Coats; Dalrymple; Delzer; DeWitz; Erickson; Flaagan; Freier; Gerntholz; Gilmore; Goffe; Gorder; Grumbo; Hanson; Henegar; Hokana; Howard; Huether; Jacobson; Kelsch; Kloube; Kolbo; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Linderman; Mahoney; Martin; Martinson; Miller; Muhs; Mutzenberger; Myrdal; Nelson; Nicholas; Nichols; Oban; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Payne; Peterson; Porter; Price; Pyle; Rennerfeldt; Ritter; Rydell; Schimke; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Skar; Skjerven; Snyder; Soukup; St. Aubyn; Starke; Stofferahn; Svedjan; Thorpe; Timm; Tollefson; Trautman; Urlacher; Wardner; Whalen; Wilkie; Williams; Speaker R. Anderson

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Grosz; Hausauer; Larson; Nowatzki; Thompson; Wald

HB 1369 was declared lost.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

HCR 3013: A concurrent resolution directing the Legislative Council to study methods of funding higher education.

The question being on the final adoption of the resolution, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS.

HCR 3013 was declared adopted on a voice vote.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1022: A BILL for an Act making an appropriation for defraying the expenses of job service North Dakota.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 99 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 7 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Anderson, B.; Bateman; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Bernstein; Bodine; Boehm; Boucher; Brokaw; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Clayburgh; Cleary; Coats; Dalrymple; Delzer; DeMers; Dorso; Enget; Erickson; Flaagan; Freier; Gabrielson; Gates; Gerntholz; Gilmore; Goffe; Gorder; Gorman; Grumbo; Hanson; Henegar; Hokana; Howard; Huether; Jacobson; Jensen; Kaldor; Kelsch; Kerzman; Kloube; Kolbo; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Linderman; Mahoney; Martin; Martinson; Meyer; Miller; Muhs; Mutzenberger; Myrdal; Nelson; Nicholas; Nichols; Oban; Olson, A.; Payne; Peterson; Porter; Price;

Pyle; Rennerfeldt; Ring; Ritter; Rydell; Scherber; Schimke; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Skar; Skjerven; Snyder; Soukup; St. Aubyn; Starke; Stofferahn; Svedjan; Thorpe; Timm; Tollefson; Trautman; Urlacher; Wardner; Wentz; Whalen; Wilkie; Williams; Speaker R. Anderson

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Grosz; Hausauer; Larson; Nowatzki; Olsen, D.; Thompson; Wald

HB 1022 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTION

REP. KLOUBEC MOVED that HB 1224 be placed at the head of the calendar, which motion prevailed.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1224: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 39-03-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to age qualifications of appointees to the highway patrol.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS, the roll was called and there were 63 YEAS, 35 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 8 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Anderson, B.; Bateman; Bodine; Brokaw; Brown; Byerly; Carlson; Clayburgh; Cleary; DeMers; DeWitz; Erickson; Flaagan; Gabrielson; Gerntholz; Gilmore; Goffe; Gorder; Grumbo; Hanson; Hokana; Howard; Huether; Jacobson; Jensen; Kaldor; Kolbo; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Mahoney; Martinson; Miller; Muhs; Mutzenberger; Nelson; Nichols; Oban; Olson, A.; Porter; Rennerfeldt; Ring; Rydell; Scherber; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Skar; Skjerven; Snyder; Soukup; Starke; Stofferahn; Svedjan; Thorpe; Trautman; Wardner; Wentz; Whalen; Wilkie; Williams

NAYS: Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Carlisle; Coats; Dalrymple; Delzer; Dorso; Enget; Freier; Gates; Gorman; Henegar; Kelsch; Kerzman; Kloubec; Linderman; Martin; Meyer; Myrdal; Olsen, D.; Payne; Peterson; Price; Pyle; Ritter; Schimke; St. Aubyn; Timm; Tollefson; Urlacher; Speaker R. Anderson

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Grosz; Hausauer; Kretschmar; Larson; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Thompson; Wald

HB 1224 passed and the title was agreed to.

REQUEST

REP. KRETSCHMAR REQUESTED that the record show that he intended to vote "Yea" on HB 1224, which request was granted.

MOTIONS

REP. MARTINSON MOVED that HB 1549 be returned to the House floor from the Committee on State and Federal Government and be referred to the Committee on Industry, Business and Labor, which motion prevailed.

REP. KLOUBEC MOVED that the absent members be excused, which motion prevailed.

REP. KLOUBEC MOVED that the House be on the Fifth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Fifth order, the House be on the Ninth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Ninth order, the House be on the Thirteenth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Thirteenth order, the House stand adjourned until 1:00 p.m., Tuesday, January 29, 1991, which motion prevailed.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

HB 1071: Committee on Transportation (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (10 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). The proposed amendment was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 11, after "plates" insert "; and to provide an effective date"

Page 26, after line 2, insert:

"SECTION 30. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective on the date upon which there is a general reissuance of motor vehicle number plates by the department of transportation to replace the centennial number plates. The department shall certify the date of general reissuance to the secretary of state who shall certify the date to the legislative council."

Renumber accordingly

HB 1151: Committee on Political Subdivisions (Rep. Martin, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (17 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). The proposed amendment was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 2, line 20, after "land" insert "for recreational purposes" and replace "public entities" with "state agencies and political subdivisions"

Renumber accordingly

HB 1159: Committee on Transportation (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). The proposed amendment was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 2, replace "subsection" with "subsections" and after "1" insert ", 2, and 4"

Page 3, line 19, replace "Subsection" with "Subsections" and after "1" insert ", 2, and 4"

Page 3, line 20, replace "is" with "are"

Page 4, after line 10, insert:

"2. If the board of county commissioners determines that a substantial change is necessary in the details of the program of farm-to-market and federal-aid roads previously approved by the electors of the county, the board shall set a date for a public hearing on the proposed amendment to the program. Notice ~~shall~~ must be published in the official newspaper of the county once a week for three consecutive weeks before the date of public hearing. The board, after approval of the amendment by the state department of transportation and the federal highway administration, may officially amend the program. The program, as amended by the board, ~~shall become~~ becomes the official county road program.

4. Any proceeds of a tax levy in excess of the amount needed to match federal funds in any year may be used by the county, at any time the proceeds may become available, for providing paved or any other type of road surfacing on, or for maintenance of, roads included within the county road program for which the tax levy was originally made or for any new project included in an amended program."

Renumber accordingly

HB 1167: Committee on Transportation (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). The proposed amendment was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 1, remove "39-01-02,"

Page 1, line 2, after the first comma insert "subsections 1 and 2 of section"

Page 1, line 3, remove "the display of number plates on state owned or"

Page 1, remove line 4

Page 1, line 5, remove "requirement,"

Page 1, remove lines 11 through 22

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 22

Page 3, line 2, remove "in alphabetical order"

Page 5, line 9, replace "fourteen" with "twenty"

Page 5, line 11, replace "Subsection" with "Subsections" and after "1" insert "and 2"

Page 5, line 12, replace "is" with "are"

Page 5, line 16, overstrike "first"

Page 5, after line 23 insert:

"2. Any hearing conducted under this section and any appeal from the decision of the hearing must be conducted under ~~chapter 26-32~~ rules adopted by the director, except the hearing must be heard within sixty days of the receipt of the request for hearing and in the county of the licensee's residence, unless the parties agree to a different time and place for the hearing. At the hearing, the regularly kept records of the ~~commissioner~~ director may be introduced and are prima facie evidence of their content without further foundation."

Renumber accordingly

HB 1239: Committee on Transportation (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). The proposed amendment was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 13, after the period insert "The fee for the special plates issued under this section for vehicles registered under section 39-04-10.6 is a one-time fee of one hundred dollars."

Renumber accordingly

HB 1246: Committee on Transportation (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO NOT PASS (11 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). The proposed amendment was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 9, remove the overstrike over "~~surety bond executed by the applicant as~~"

Page 1, remove the overstrike over line 10

Page 1, line 11, remove the overstrike over "~~business within~~", after "~~the~~" insert "this", remove the overstrike over "~~state~~", remove the

overstrike over the comma, after "be" insert "a", after "deposit" insert an underscored comma, and after "or" insert "a"

Page 1, line 12, after "deposit" insert an underscored comma and remove the overstrike over the comma

Page 1, line 18, after "The" insert "bond," and after the first "deposit" insert an underscored comma

Page 2, line 2, after the second "the" insert "bond,"

Page 2, line 3, after the first "deposit" insert an underscored comma

Page 2, line 5, remove the overstrike over "~~Provided, however, that the aggregate liability of the~~"

Page 2, line 6, remove the overstrike over "~~surety to all such persons for all~~", remove the overstrike over "~~losses or damages may~~", and after the second overstruck comma insert "not"

Page 2, line 7, remove the overstrike over "~~exceed the amount of~~", after "such" insert "the", and remove the overstrike over "~~bond. Any third party sustaining injury within the~~"

Page 2, remove the overstrike over line 8

Page 2, line 9, remove the overstrike over "~~the state a party to~~" after "such" insert "the", and remove the overstrike over "~~proceedings-~~"

Page 2, line 11, remove the overstrike over "~~surety bond~~", after "in", insert an underscored comma, and after the first "deposit" insert an underscored comma

Renumber accordingly

HB 1320: Committee on Agriculture (Rep. Nicholas, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). The proposed amendment was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar

Page 1, line 18, replace "fifty" with "thirty"

Renumber accordingly

HB 1353: Committee on Education (Rep. Gates, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (15 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). The proposed amendment was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 13, overstrike the word "The" and insert immediately thereafter "Upon request of the child, the"

Page 1, line 16, after "perpetrator" insert "nor may the administrator or the administrator's designee be present during the interview without the consent of the child"

Renumber accordingly

HB 1359: Committee on Education (Rep. Gates, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (16 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). The proposed amendment was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 3, replace "multidistrict" with "area" and replace "education" with "and technology"

Page 2, line 11, after "shall" insert ", upon request,"

Page 2, line 13, replace the first "multidistrict" with "area" and replace "education" with "and technology"

Page 2, line 15, replace "multidistrict" with "area" and replace "education" with "and technology"

Renumber accordingly

HB 1363: Committee on Education (Rep. Gates, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Committee on Appropriations (10 YEAS, 6 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). The proposed amendment was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 8, replace "thirty" with "thirty-five"

Renumber accordingly

HB 1427: Committee on Finance and Taxation (Rep. Timm, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1427 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

FIRST READING OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

Reps. Kloubec, Schneider and Sens. Heigaard, Nelson introduced:

HCR 3030: A concurrent resolution urging the United States Congress to support research to determine whether there is scientific basis for the global warming theory prior to adoption of proposals or policies intended to reduce emissions of carbon dioxide from the use of coal, oil, and natural gas.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Finance and Taxation.

FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS

SB 2057: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 55-08-06 and 55-08-06.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to permits on motor vehicles entering state park and recreation areas and senior citizen entrance permits to state parks.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Natural Resources.

SB 2082: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 20.1-13-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to windsurfing or boardsailing.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Natural Resources.

SB 2097: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 43-17.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the commission on medical competency.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Human Services and Veterans Affairs.

SB 2108: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 15-40.2-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to foundation aid payments for attendance of students at out-of-state schools.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Education.

SB 2144: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 52-06-04 and section 52-06-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to qualifications as an insured worker and benefit duration for unemployment compensation purposes.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Industry, Business and Labor.

SB 2209: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 61-03-21.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the modification of unsafe or authorized works.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Natural Resources.

SB 2232: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 55-08-06 and 55-08-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to permit fees for vehicles entering state parks; and to repeal section 55-08-06.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to motor vehicle permits and fees collected by the state parks and recreation department.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Natural Resources.

The House stood adjourned pursuant to Representative Kloubec's motion.

ROY GILBREATH, Chief Clerk